


 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, June 12, 2019, 6:00 p.m. 

 
NEW MEETING LOCATION 

Administrative Office, 1st Floor Community Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 
 

 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

Pursuant  to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific situations, as 
set forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board 
finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item 
was continued from an earlier  meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the 
earlier meeting. 

 
C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the District. Please note 
that, for comments made on items  not appearing on the current agenda, the Board may take no action as to the comment at the 
current meeting (Gov’t Code 54954.3[a]), and the Board is allowed only a brief response to the speaker’s comment. For the record, 
please state your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and presented to the Board Chair or the recording 
secretary.  The Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more than five minutes  

 
D. CONSENT ITEMS 
 D1. Approval of April 2019 Financial Statements ................................................................... 2 
 D2. Minutes of May 1, 2019 Finance Committee Meeting .................................................... 22 
 D3. Minutes of May 1, 2019 Strategic Planning Committee ................................................. 25 
 D4. Minutes of May 8, 2019 Special Board Meeting ............................................................ 28 
 D5. Minutes of May 8, 2019 Regular Board Meeting ........................................................... 30 
 D6. Minutes of May 15, 2019 Strategic Planning Committee ............................................... 37 
 D7. Minutes of May 24, 2019 Facilities Committee Meeting ................................................ 40 
 D8. Minutes of May 29, 2019 Special Board Meeting/Public Forum .................................... 44 
 
E. REPORTS 

E1. Finance Committee – Directors Jeffries and Mroz 
E2. Gov’t and Public Engagement Committee – Directors Schwartz-Frates and Mroz 
E3. Facilities Committee – Directors Leach and Jeffries 
E4. Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Salmon and Jeffries 
E5. Executive Director – Rachel Mason, MS MA 
E6. General Counsel – Jeffrey Scott 

 
F. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

F1. Review of Draft Budget Fiscal Year 2019-2020 – First Reading .................................... 52 
 
G. ACTION ITEMS 

G1. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 427 – Annual Statement of Investment 
 Policy for FY 2019-2020 – Second Reading ................................................................. 57 
G2. Approval of Short-Term Lease (six months) for Non-Profit School, Rock Rose School for 

Creative Learning – 1636 E. Mission Rd.  ..................................................................... 63 



 

 

G3. Approval of Amendment to Lease with MedPlus Urgent Care Up to One Year ............. 72 
G4. Approval of Amendment to MOU with MedPlus Urgent Care ........................................ 87 
G5. Approval of July 5th – Float Holiday ............................................................................... 94 
G6. Consideration of Consulting Agreement with Rob Holmes for construction oversight 

services ........................................................................................................................ 96 
G7. Consideration and Approval of Roofing Specifications – 1636 E. Mission Rd., 617 E. 

Alvarado St., 138 S. Brandon Rd. ............................................................................... 100 

 
H. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 
 H1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 
  H1a. Item(s) for future board agendas  
  H1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) 
meeting – 3rd Wednesday, June 19, 10:30am-noon, FRHD Administrative 
Office, Community Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

• Special Meeting/Public Forum #7: Public Discussion Regarding Draft Maps  
 for a Transition from At-Large to Zone-Based Elections – June 19, 6:00pm, 

FRHD Administrative Office, Community Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon 
Rd., Fallbrook 

• Facilities Committee meeting – June 21, 11:00am, FRHD Administrative 
Office, Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

• Special Meeting: Community Health Contract (CHC) Applications Fiscal Year 
2019-2020 – June 28, 10:00am, FRHD Administrative Office, Community 
Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

• Gov’t and Public Engagement Committee meeting – June 28, 11:30am, 
FRHD Administrative Office, Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., 
Fallbrook 

• Finance Committee meeting – 1st Wednesday, July 3, 5:30pm, FRHD 
Administrative Office, Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook  

• Independence Day, District Holiday – July 4 
• Woman of Wellness meeting – July 11, 6:00 – 7:30pm, FRHD Wellness 

Center, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 
• Strategic Planning Committee meeting – August 7, Time TBD, FRHD 

Community Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 
H2. Next Regular Board meeting – 2nd Wednesday, July 10, 6:00pm, FRHD Administrative 

Office, Community Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: I certify that on Friday, June 7, 2019 I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting place of 
the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District, said time being at least 72 hours in advance of the 
meeting. The American with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded 
from participation in, or denied the benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District office 24 hours prior to the meeting at 760-731-9187. 

 
 
 
 

           Board Secretary/Clerk 



Page 1 of 133



Page 2 of 133



Page 3 of 133



Page 4 of 133



Page 5 of 133



Page 6 of 133



Page 7 of 133



Page 8 of 133



Page 9 of 133



Report 4Page 10 of 133



Report 4 Page 11 of 133



Report 5

Page 12 of 133



Report 6

Page 13 of 133



Page 14 of 133



Page 15 of 133



Page 16 of 133



Report 9

Page 17 of 133



Report 9

Page 18 of 133



Report 9

Page 19 of 133



Report 9

Page 20 of 133



Page 21 of 133



Page 22 of 133



Page 23 of 133



Page 24 of 133



Page 25 of 133



Page 26 of 133



Page 27 of 133



Page 28 of 133



Page 29 of 133



Page 30 of 133



Page 31 of 133



Page 32 of 133



Page 33 of 133



Page 34 of 133



Page 35 of 133



Page 36 of 133



Page 37 of 133



Page 38 of 133



Page 39 of 133



Page 40 of 133



Page 41 of 133



Page 42 of 133



Page 43 of 133



Page 44 of 133



Page 45 of 133



Page 46 of 133



Page 47 of 133



Page 48 of 133



Page 49 of 133



Page 50 of 133



Page 51 of 133



Page 52 of 133



Page 53 of 133



Page 54 of 133



Page 55 of 133



Page 56 of 133



Page 57 of 133



Page 58 of 133



Page 59 of 133



Page 60 of 133



Page 61 of 133



Page 62 of 133



Page 63 of 133



Page 64 of 133



Page 65 of 133



Page 66 of 133



Page 67 of 133



Page 68 of 133



Page 69 of 133



Page 70 of 133



Page 71 of 133



Page 72 of 133



Page 73 of 133



Page 74 of 133



Page 75 of 133



Page 76 of 133



Page 77 of 133



Page 78 of 133



Page 79 of 133



Page 80 of 133



Page 81 of 133



Page 82 of 133



Page 83 of 133



Page 84 of 133



Page 85 of 133



Page 86 of 133



Page 87 of 133



Page 88 of 133



Page 89 of 133



Page 90 of 133



Page 91 of 133



Page 92 of 133



Page 93 of 133



Page 94 of 133



Page 95 of 133



Page 96 of 133



Page 97 of 133



Page 98 of 133



Page 99 of 133



Page 100 of 133



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fallbrook Regional Health  

Request for Proposal 

June ___, 2019 

Page 101 of 133



 

 

Dear Contractor: 
 

The Fallbrook Regional Health Department would like to invite you to provide a competitive proposal for 
their roofing project. Please provide a proposal package based on the provided documents in this Request 
for Proposal. Enclosed you will find the bid instructions and bidding documents. 

 
Fallbrook Regional Health:  
617 Alvarado St, Fallbrook 
138 S. Brandon Rd, Fallbrook 

 
Wendy Lyon will be your main point of contact during the bidding process. Wendy can be reached via 
email or phone at bookeeper@fallbrookhealth.org or 760.390.9380. Please notify Wendy with your 
intention to bid by XX/XX/19. 

 
Our bid schedule is as follows: 

 

1. Request for proposal issued: XX/XX /19 

2. Proposal due: XX/XX/19 

 
Thank You, 

 
Wendy Lyon, Fallbrook Regional Health Department 

Page 102 of 133

mailto:bookeeper@fallbrookhealth.org


 

Bid Instructions 
1. Contractor Representations 
2. Interpretation or Correction of Bidding Documents 
3. Bid Preparation 
4. Additional Project Requirements 
5. Consideration of Bids 
6. Bid Form 

 
 

1. Contractor Representations 

The Contractor by making a bid represents that: 

The Contractor has read and understands the Bidding Documents to the extent that such 
documentation relates to the Work for which the Bid is submitted, and for other portions of 
the Project, if any, being bid concurrently or presently under construction. 

The Bid is made in compliance with the Bidding Documents. 

The Contractor has visited the site, become familiar with local conditions under which the 
Work is to be performed and has correlated the Contractor's personal observations with the 
requirements of the Bidding Documents. 

The Bid is based upon the materials, equipment and systems required by the Bidding 
Documents without exception. Alternates to the products specified herein may be considered, 
please provide like in kind manufactures back-up with any alternate bids submitted. 

 

  Warranty: 
  Contractor to provide proposed warranty 

2. Interpretation or Correction of Bidding Documents 
 

Contractors requiring clarification or interpretation of the Bidding Documents shall make a 
written request which shall reach the Contract Administrator, Wendy Lyon by XX/XX/19. 

Interpretations, corrections, and changes of the Bidding Documents made by any other 
manner will not be binding, and Contractors shall not rely upon them. 

Quantities provided in the Bidding Documents where applicable are intended for bid 
evaluation purposes only. 

 
3. Bid Preparation 

 

Bids shall be completed and submitted on the forms included with the Bidding Documents. 
Along with the bid form, please provide the following documents: 

- References 
o List, at least, three projects you have completed within the past three 

years that are similar to this project. 

Page 103 of 133



- Preliminary Schedule and Phasing Plan 
- Insurance 

o Provide insurance coverage 
- Safety Program 

o Provide your safety program; how you will ensure the safety of both your 
crew and residents. 

- Quality Control Program 
o Provide your Quality Control processes and procedures 

- Communication Program 
o Provide your communication program; how you will communicate with 

Owners during the re-roof process.  
 

4. Additional Project Requirements 

- All work shall be done during the hours XXX and XXX on XXX days of the week. 

- Contractor shall keep all work areas clean, safe and clearly marked with caution tape and 

cones to insure the safety of the residents and employees. 

- Contractor shall emphasize good housekeeping practices at all times exercising extreme 

caution to protect all personnel and facility. 

- Materials, storage containers, etc. shall be placed in such location(s) on the property as 

designated by Owner and locked at all times. Please submit a staging plan for each 

building for consideration and/or approval. 

- Contractor shall remove and dispose of all debris from property as a result of all work 

performed, prior to leaving the job site at the end of each day. 
 

- Contractor shall provide insurance, Contractor licenses and contact information for any 

Sub-Contractors or Company employees used on this project prior to starting work. 

- All workers on site are required to have Contractor company uniform and identification 

cards or tags at all times. 

- Contractor required to provide Owner an updated weekly schedule at a time mutually 

agreed upon in writing. 

- Any worker on site is required to utilize contractor supplied restroom facilities on site and 

refrain from using any toilet facilities on premises unless otherwise agreed upon in writing 

with Owner. 
 

- Protection of the premises: Contractor shall be required to properly protect the areas of the 
Premises where the work is being performed. For the purposes for this requirement, 
“properly protect” shall include, without limitation, tarping in a watertight condition and 
taking any reasonable measures necessary to protect the interiors of the building upon which 
the work shall be performed or areas of the premises adjacent to where the work shall be 
performed. This responsibility shall include, but not be limited, to requiring that Contractor to 
take commercially reasonable measures to ensure that the common area and/or the interior 

Page 104 of 133



of the premises including the units shall not be damaged by any form of water intrusion 
occurring in connection with the work.  If the contractor does not properly protect the work 
areas where the work is being performed, the Contractor shall be fully responsible and liable 
for any interior damage to any common areas and to any unit located within the premises 
resulting directly or indirectly from the performance of the work. Such repairs and/or 
replacements shall be without cost to property owner, and shall be made as soon as possible, 
but in no event (7) days after said request. Notwithstanding and foregoing, all emergency 
repairs shall commence within twenty-four (24) hours after demand for such repairs 

- Attach your firms labor and materials rate sheet for reference on all Change Orders. Rate 

sheet shall include (at a minimum) unit price as outlined on bid form. 

Safety: 

- Contractor shall have on-site at all times a foreman possessing knowledge of OSHA 

policies and procedures and have a completed Job Safety plan. 

- Contractor agrees to the following: 
o First safety violation will result in an email warning 
o Second safety violation will result in a fine equal to 1.5% of the contract 

value 

o Third safety violation will result in work stoppage – work stoppage due to safety 

violations may result in contract cancelation. 

5. Consideration of Bids 

Selection will be an award based on best value to the Client that includes several criteria and not 
just lowest price. The criteria include consideration for the contractor’s: 

1. Past performance 
2. Company Qualifications 
3. Management procedures 
4. Price 

 
The Owner shall have the right to reject any or all Bids and to negotiate either contract terms and 
conditions, or price with the selected Contractor. A Bid which is in any way incomplete or irregular 
is subject to rejection. 
 

 

6. Work 
 

The work to be done on this project includes furnishing all materials, labor, tools, equipment, 
scaffolding, lifts and all other necessary equipment, supplies, and services to perform a 
complete and thorough job. Each item or area in these specifications is described by the most 
commonly used name, and contractor shall inform himself of these areas that are being repaired. 
Contractor shall be responsible for requesting prompt clarification when instructions are lacking 
or unclear. All permits shall be the responsibility of bidder. Owner will reimburse bidder for 
permit costs. 

 
 

Page 105 of 133



 

SCOPE OF WORK: 138 S. Brandon Road, Fallbrook and 617 Alvarado Street, Fallbrook 

 
Please provide pricing for full replacement of the flat roofs at both of the addresses listed above. 
Pricing to be based on the detailed Sikaplan Mechanically-attached thermoplastic membrane 
specification below.  
 
MECHANICALLY-ATTACHED THERMOPLASTIC MEMBRANE ROOFING 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

1.01 DESCRIPTION 
 

A. Scope 
 

1. The extent of the PVC roofing system work is defined to include roofing, flashing, and roofing 
accessories integrally related to roofing installation. 
 

2. Contractor shall coordinate with all other trades that directly influence the roof system application 
to provide a watertight installation of all roof membrane and roof flashings. 
 

3. Contractor shall verify condition of substrate, curbs, penetrations, flashings, equipment supports, 
etc. and shall notify the owner of any discrepancies in the scope of work prior to commencement 
of roofing. 

 
B. Related Work 

The work includes but is not limited to the installation of: 
 

1. Removal of Existing BUR Roofing down to the plywood deck. 
2. Substrate Preparation 
3. Protection Board 
4. Roof Membrane    
5. Fasteners 
6. Adhesive for Flashing 
7. Roof Membrane Flashings   
8. Walkways   
9. Metal Flashings    
 

C. Upon successful completion of work the following warranties may be obtained: 
 
1. Membrane Manufacturer System Warranty 
2. Applicator Warranty 
 

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 

A. This system shall be applied only by a Roofing Contractor authorized by the membrane 
manufacturer.  ("Approved Applicator"). 

 

Page 106 of 133



B. Upon completion of the installation and the delivery to Sika Corporation by the Applicator of 
certification that all work has been done in strict accordance with the contract specifications and Sika 
Corporation's requirements, a Sika Corporation Technical Service Representative will review the 
installed roof system wherever a System Warranty has been specified. 

 

C. There shall be no deviation made from the Project Specification or the approved shop drawings 
without prior written approval by the Owner, the Owner's Representative and the membrane 
manufacturer. 

 

D. All work pertaining to the installation of specified membrane and flashings shall only be completed 
by  Applicator personnel trained  and authorized by the membrane manufacturer in those 
procedures. 

 

E. Membrane to have no formulation changes in the last (15) years as certified by the manufacturer. 
 

F. Manufacturer’s warranty shall have “No Dollar Limit” for the replacement of defective materials 
and/or labor and shall not contain Any exclusion for ponding water.  

 

G. Membrane manufacturer to confirm in writing that they directly manufacture the roofing 
membrane (private labeled membranes are not acceptable). 
 
1.03 SUBMITTALS 
 

A. Submittals of Specified Material 
 

At the time of award, the Applicator shall submit to four (4) copies of the following: 
 

1. Samples of each primary component to be used in the roof system and the manufacturer’s current 
literature for each component. 
 

2. Sample copy of Manufacturer’s 20-year System Warranty. 
 

3. Sample copy of Applicator’s 10-year Workmanship Warranty. 
 

4. Certification from the Applicator that the system specified meets all identified code and insurance 
requirements as required by the Specification. 
 

5. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) 
 

B. Submittals of Equals 
 
Submit proposed equals to be considered for use on this project no less than ten (10) days prior to bid date.  
Proposed roof systems which have been reviewed and accepted will be listed in an addendum prior to bid date; only 
then will roof systems be accepted at bidding.   
 

C. Submittals shall include the following: 

Page 107 of 133



1. Copies of Specification. 
 

2. Samples of each primary component to be used in the roof system and the manufacturer’s current 
literature for each component. 

 
3. Sample copy of Manufacturer’s warranty, must meet all requirements as outlined in Quality Assurance 

1.02-F and Warranty 1.08-A. 
 

4. Sample copy of Applicator’s warranty. 
 

5. Submit documentation that materials and system meet the standards as set forth by Quality Assurance 
1.02A through G. 

 
6. Certifications by manufacturers of roofing and insulating materials that all materials supplied comply 

with all requirements of the identified ASTM and industry standards or practices and requirements of 
this specification including warranty requirements. 
 

7. Certification from the Applicator that the system specified meets all identified code and insurance 
requirements as required by the Specification. 
 

8. Letter from the proposed manufacturer confirming the number of years it has DIRECTLY manufactured 
the proposed roof system under the trade names and/or trademarks as proposed. 

 
9. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) 

 
1.04 CODE REQUIREMENTS 

 
The applicator shall submit evidence that the proposed roof system meets the requirements of the 
local building code and has been tested and approved or listed by the following test organizations.  
These requirements are minimum standards and no roofing work shall commence without written 
documentation of the system's compliance, as required in the "Submittals" section of this 
specification. 
 

A. Factory Mutual Research Corporation (FM) - Norwood, MA 
 

1. Class 1-60 (guideline) 

 

B. Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. - Northbrook, IL 
 

1. Class A assembly 
 

1.05 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 

A. All products delivered to the job site shall be in the original unopened containers or wrappings 
bearing all seals and approvals. 

 

B. Handle all materials to prevent damage.  Place all materials on pallets and fully protect 
from moisture. 

Page 108 of 133



 

C. Membrane rolls shall be stored lying down on pallets and fully protected from the weather with 
clean canvas tarpaulins.  Unvented polyethylene tarpaulins are not accepted due to the 
accumulation of moisture beneath the tarpaulin in certain weather conditions that may affect the 
ease of membrane weldability. 

 

D. As a general rule all adhesives shall be stored at temperatures between 40º F and 80º F.  Read 
instructions contained on adhesive canister for specific storage instructions. 

 

E. All flammable materials shall be stored in a cool, dry area away from sparks and open flames.  
Follow precautions outlined on containers or supplied by material manufacturer/supplier. 
 

1.06 JOB CONDITIONS 
 

A. Roofing materials may be installed under certain adverse weather conditions but only after 
consultation with the manufacturer, as installation time and system integrity may be affected. 
 

B. Only as much of the new roofing as can be made weathertight each day, including all flashing and 
detail work, shall be installed.  All seams shall be heat welded before leaving the job site that day. 
 

C. All surfaces to receive new membrane or flashings shall be dry.  Should surface moisture occur, the 
Applicator shall provide the necessary equipment to dry the surface prior to application. 
 

D. All new and temporary construction, including equipment and accessories, shall be secured in such 
a manner as to preclude wind blow-off and subsequent roof or equipment damage. 
 

E. Uninterrupted waterstops shall be installed at the end of each day's work and shall be completely 
removed before proceeding with the next day's work. Waterstops shall not emit dangerous or 
unsafe fumes and shall not remain in contact with the finished roof as the installation progresses.  
Contaminated membrane shall be replaced at no cost to the Owner. 
 

F. The Applicator is cautioned that certain roofing membranes are incompatible with asphalt, coal 
tar, heavy oils, roofing cements, creosote and some preservative materials.  Such materials shall 
not remain in contact with PVC membranes.  The Applicator shall consult the membrane 
manufacturer regarding compatibility, precautions and recommendations. 
 

G. Arrange work sequence to avoid use of newly constructed roofing as a walking surface or for 
equipment movement and storage.  Where such access is absolutely required, the contractor 
requiring access shall provide all necessary protection and barriers to segregate the work area and 
to prevent damage to adjacent areas.  A substantial protection layer consisting of plywood over 9 
oz. felt or plywood over insulation board shall be provided for all new and existing roof areas that 
receive rooftop traffic during construction. 
 

H. Prior to and during application, all dirt, debris and dust shall be removed from surfaces by 
vacuuming, sweeping, blowing with compressed air and/or similar methods. 
 

Page 109 of 133



I. The Applicator shall follow all safety regulations as required by OSHA and any other applicable 
authority having jurisdiction. 
 

J. All new roofing waste material (i.e., scrap roof membrane, empty cans of adhesive) shall be 
immediately removed from the site by the Applicator and properly transported to a legal dumping 
area authorized to receive such material. 
 

K. The Applicator shall take precautions that storage and/or application of materials and/or 
equipment does not overload the roof deck or building structure. 
 

L. Flammable adhesives and deck primers shall not be stored and not be used in the vicinity of open 
flames, sparks and excessive heat. 
 

M. All rooftop contamination that is anticipated or that is occurring shall be reported to the 
membrane manufacturer to determine the corrective steps to be taken. 
 

N. The Applicator shall verify that all roof drain lines are functioning correctly (not clogged or blocked) 
before starting work.  Applicator shall report any such blockages in writing (letter copy to the 
membrane manufacturer) to the Owner's Representative for corrective action prior to the 
installation of the PVC roof system. 
 

O. Site cleanup, including both interior and exterior building areas that have been affected by 
construction, shall be completed to the Owner's satisfaction. 
 

P. The PVC membrane shall not be installed under the following conditions without consulting the 
membrane manufacturer’s Technical Department for precautionary steps: 
 

1. The roof assembly permits interior air to pressurize the membrane underside. 
2. Any exterior wall has 10% or more of the surface area comprised of opening doors or windows. 
3. The wall/deck intersection permits air entry into the wall flashing area. 

 

Q. PVC membranes are slippery when wet or covered with snow, frost, or ice.  Working on surfaces 
under these conditions is hazardous.  Appropriate safety measures must be implemented prior to 
working on such surfaces.  Always follow OSHA and other relevant fall protection standards when 
working on roofs. 
 

1.07 BIDDING REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Pre-Bid: 

 
ADM to participate? 

 
1.08 WARRANTIES 

 

A. Membrane Manufacturer’s 20 Year System Warranty 

 

Page 110 of 133



1. Upon successful completion of the work to the membrane manufacturer’s satisfaction and receipt of 
final payment, the 20 Year System Warranty shall be issued.  The warranty shall have “No Dollar Limit” 
for the replacement of defective materials and/or labor and shall not contain any exclusion for ponding 
water for any length of time. 
 
 

C. Owner Responsibility 

 
1. Owner shall notify both the membrane manufacturer and the Applicator of any leaks as they occur 

during the time period when both warranties are in effect. 
 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 

2.01 GENERAL 
 

A. The basis of design for the roof system is Sika Sarnafil or equal.  Equals must comply with Quality 
Assurance section 1.02 and Submittal section 1.03B. 
 

2.02 MEMBRANE 
 

A. Sika Sarnafil polyester reinforced membrane with a lacquer coating. Other manufacturers offering 
acceptable products include the following: 

1. Or Equal 

B. Membrane shall conform to ASTM D4434 (latest version), "Standard for Polyvinyl Chloride Sheet 
Roofing". Classification:  Type III, Grade I. 
 

1. Sika Sarnafil, 60 mil minimum, thermoplastic membrane with polyester reinforcement. 

 

C. Color of Membrane 

 
1. White 

 
2.03 FLASHING MATERIALS 

 
A. Wall/Curb Flashing 

 
1. PVC Flashing Membrane 

 
A 60 mil fiberglass reinforced membrane available adhered to approved substrate using VOC compliant adhesive. 
Color shall match field membrane. 

2. G459 Flashing Membrane 
 
An asphalt-resistant, fiberglass reinforced membrane adhered to approved substrate using Sarnacol adhesive. 
Available color, white. 
 

3. Sarnaclad  
 
A PVC-coated, heat-weldable sheet metal capable of being formed into a variety of shapes and 

Page 111 of 133



profiles.  Sarnaclad is a 25 gauge, G90 galvanized metal sheet with a 20 mil  unsupported Sarnafil 
membrane laminated on one side.  The dimensions of Sarnaclad are 4 ft x 10 ft.  
 
 

B. Miscellaneous Flashing 
 

1. Reglet Termination Bar 
 
A heavy-duty, extruded aluminum flashing termination reglet used at walls and large curbs.  Reglet 
termination bar is produced from 6063-T5, 0.10 inch - 0.12 inch thick extruded aluminum.  The Reglet 
has a 2¼ inch deep profile, and is provided in 10 foot lengths.  Use prefabricated reglet mitered inside 
and outside corners where walls intersect. 
 

2. Universal Stack 
 
A 60 mil thick prefabricated stack/pipe boot injection molded. 
 

3. Inside and Outside Corners 
 
A 60 mil thick prefabricated inside and outside corner injection molded. 
 

4. Multi-Purpose Sealant 
 
A proprietary sealant used at flashing terminations.  Consult Product Data Sheet for additional information. 
 

5. VOC Compliant Solvent Based Adhesive 
 
A VOC compliant adhesive used to attach membrane to flashing substrate. 
 
 

2.04         PROTECTION BOARD 
 

A. DensDeck® 
  
A siliconized gypsum, fire-tested hardboard with glass-mat facers. DensDeck is provided in a 4 ft x 8 ft  
board size and in thicknesses of ¼”. 
 

2.05       ATTACHMENT COMPONENTS 
 

A. Sikaplan Disc: A 2-3/8 inches diameter high strength plate used with a Sarnafastener to attach the roof 
membrane to steel and wood roof decks.   
 

B. Sarnafastener #15 XP: #15 corrosion-resistant fastener used with Sarnaplates to attach insulation 
and/or roof boards to steel roof decks. Sarnafastener #15 XP has a shank diameter of approximately 
0.21 inch and the thread diameter is approximately 0.26 inch.  The driving head has a diameter of 
approximately 0.435 inch  with a #3 Phillips recess for positive engagement. 

 

Page 112 of 133



C. Sarnadisc XPN: A high strength linear plate used with a Sarnafastener to attach Sarnafil fastened roof 
membrane to steel, wood or concrete roof decks. Sarnadisc XPN is an 18 gauge, 1-1/2 by 3-3/4 inch 
corrosion resistant steel plate. 

 
D. Sarnaplate:  Used with the #12 fasteners to attach protection and insulation boards to roof deck.  The 

cover board plate is a 3 inch square 26 gauge stamping of SAE 1010 steel with an AZ 55 Galvalume 
coating. 

 
E. Sarnafastener #12:  A  #12 corrosion-resistant fastener used with plates to attach protection and 

insulation boards to steel or wood roof decks. The #12 fastener has a modified buttress thread, a 
shank diameter of approximately 0.168 inch and a thread diameter of approximately 0.214 inch.  The 
driving head has a diameter of approximately 0.435 inch with a #3 Phillips recess for positive 
engagement 

 
F. Peel stop:  An extruded aluminum, low profile bar used with certain fasteners to attach to the roof 

deck or to walls/curbs at terminations, penetrations and at incline changes of the substrate.  Peel 
stop is a 1 inch wide, flat aluminum bar 1/8 inch thick that has predrilled holes every 6 inches on 
center 
 
 

2.09       WALKWAY PROTECTION 
 

A. Walk Tread:  A polyester reinforced, 0.096 inch, weldable membrane with surface embossment 
similar to a chevron pattern.  Used as a protection layer from rooftop traffic.  Sarnatred-V is supplied 
in rolls of 39 inches wide and 50 feet long. 
 

2.10         MISCELLANEOUS ACCESSORIES 

 
A. Aluminum Tape:  A 2 inch wide pressure-sensitive aluminum tape used as a separation layer between 

small areas of asphalt contamination and the membrane and as a bond-breaker under the coverstrip 
at the PVC Clad joints. 
 

A. PVC Cleaner:  A high quality solvent cleaner used for the general cleaning of residual asphalt, scuff 
marks, etc., from the membrane surface.  PVC Cleaner is also used daily to clean seam areas prior to 
hot-air welding in tear off or dirty conditions or if the membrane is not welded the same day it is 
unrolled.  
 

B. Multi-Purpose Butyl Tape:  A high performance sealant tape used with metal flashings as a 
 preventive measure against air and windblown moisture entry.  Also used as sealant tape for 
the  air/vapor barrier. 
 

2.11        SEALANTS 
 

A. Multi-Purpose Sealant (for termination details).  
 

B. Two Part urethane sealant. 
 

Page 113 of 133



C. Depending on substrates, the following sealants are options for temporary overnight tie-ins: 
 

1. Two Part urethane sealant. 
2. Multiple layers of roofing cement and felt. 
3. Spray-applied, water-resistant urethane foam. 
4. Mechanical attachment with rigid bars and compressed sealant. 
 

2.12        MISCELLANEOUS FASTENERS AND ANCHORS 

 
A. All fasteners, anchors, nails, straps, bars, etc. shall be post-galvanized steel, aluminum or stainless 

steel.  Mixing metal types and methods of contact shall be assembled in such a manner as to avoid 
galvanic corrosion.  Fasteners for attachment of metal to masonry shall be expansion type fasteners 
with stainless steel pins.  All concrete fasteners and anchors shall have a minimum embedment of 1¼ 
inch and shall be approved for such use by the fastener manufacturer.  All miscellaneous wood 
fasteners and anchors used for flashings shall have a minimum embedment of 1 inch and shall be 
approved for such use by the fastener manufacturer. 
 
 
 
PART 3- EXECUTION 
 

3.01 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 
 

A. The Applicator, Owner's Representative and Manufacturer shall attend a pre-construction 
conference. 
 

B. The meeting shall discuss all aspects of the project including but not limited to: 
 

1. Safety 
2. Set up 
3. Construction schedule 
4. Contract conditions 
5. Coordination of the work 

 
3.02 SUBSTRATE PREPARATION 

 
The roof deck and existing roof construction must be structurally sound to provide support for the 
new roof system.  The Applicator shall load materials on the rooftop in such a manner as to eliminate 
risk of deck overload due to concentrated weight.  The Owner's Representative shall ensure that the 
roof deck is secured to the structural framing according to local building code and in such a manner 
as to resist all anticipated wind loads in that location. 
 

A. Reroofing with Removal of Existing Bitumen Roofing 
 

1. Wood Deck: 
 

a) Non-FM Approved Wood Deck - All rotted or deteriorated wood shall be removed and replaced.  The 
deck thickness shall be 1-1/2 inch minimum lumber or 15/32 plywood or match existing deck if 

Page 114 of 133



greater.  Deck type and attachment shall conform to local code requirements. Fastener heads shall 
be recessed into the wood surface. 
 

3.03 SUBSTRATE INSPECTION 
 

A. A dry, clean and smooth substrate shall be prepared to receive the PVC roof system. 
 

B. The Applicator shall inspect the substrate for defects such as excessive surface roughness, 
contamination, structural inadequacy, or any other condition that will adversely affect the quality 
of work. 
 

C. The substrate shall be clean, smooth, dry, free of flaws, sharp edges, loose and foreign material, oil 
and grease.  Roofing shall not start until all defects have been corrected. 

 

D. All roof surfaces shall be free of moisture. 
 

E. Roofing membrane shall be applied over compatible and accepted substrates only. 
 
 

3.04 PROTECTION AND INSULATION BOARD INSTALLATION 
 
A. Protection and insulation board shall be installed according to manufacturer's instructions. 
 

B. Protection and insulation board shall be neatly cut to fit around penetrations and projections. 
 

C. Do not install more protection and insulation board than can be covered with membrane by the 
end of the day or the onset of inclement weather. 
 

D. Mechanical Attachment  
 

1. Insulation shall be mechanically fastened to the deck with approved fasteners and plates at a rate 
according to the insulation manufacturer's and Sika Sarnafil's recommendations for fastening rates 
and patterns.  The quantity and locations of the fasteners and plates shall also cause the insulation 
boards to rest evenly on the roof deck/substrate so that there are no significant and avoidable air 
spaces between the boards and the substrate.  Each insulation board shall be installed tightly against 
the adjacent boards on all sides. 

 
2. Fasteners are to be installed consistently in accordance with fastener manufacturer's 

recommendations.  Fasteners are to have minimum penetration into structural deck recommended 
by the fastener manufacturer and Sika Sarnafil. 

 
3. Use fastener tools with a depth locator and torque-limiting attachment as recommended or supplied 

by fastener manufacturer to ensure proper installation. 
 
 
3.05 INSTALLATION OF MEMBRANE 
 

Page 115 of 133



A. The surface of the substrate shall be inspected prior to installation of the PVC roof membrane.  The 
substrate shall be clean, dry, free from debris and smooth with no surface roughness or contamination.  
Broken, delaminated, wet or damaged protection boards shall be removed and replaced. 
 

B. Membrane Attachment: 
 

1. Sika Sarnafil membrane is to be attached with Sarnafasteners according to Sarnafil’s requirements. 
2. Membrane overlaps shall be shingled with the flow of water where possible. 
3. Sika Sarnafil full-width rolls shall be fastened perpendicular to the direction of the steel deck flutes, 

wood plank, precast or cementitious wood fiber panel where possible. 
4. Tack welding of PVC full or half-width rolls for purposes of temporary restraint during installation is 

not permitted.  Consult Sarnafil’s Technical Department for further information. 
 

C.  Perimeter and Corner Area  
 

1. Over the properly installed and prepared substrate surface, PVC half-width rolls are to be installed 
either parallel or perpendicular to the entire perimeter edge according to FM guidelines. The number 
of adjacent half-rolls will be determined by building height and width and other conditions according 
to FM guidelines and Sarnafil Technical.  Sarnafasteners and Sarnadiscs are installed along the edge of 
the membrane on the fastening line at a spacing determined by Sarnafil and the Owner’s 
Representative/Designer. Sarnadisc and Sarnadisc-XPN are held-back 1 inch from the outer edge of the 
membrane.  The adjacent half-roll is positioned to overlap the fastened edge of the first half-roll by 5-
1/2 inches for Sarnadisc and Sarnadisc-XPN, in accordance with the overlap lines marked on its edge. 
The 5-1/2 inch overlap will allow the top membrane to extend 2-1/2 inches past the Sarnadisc and 
Sarnadisc-XPN for heat-welding. Fasteners shall clamp the PVC membrane tightly to the substrate.  In 
corner areas where perimeter half-rolls intersect, add rows of Sarnafasteners and Sarnadiscs over the 
top the half-rolls and weld a (PVC) coverstrip above them for watertightness.  
 
 

D. Interior Area  
 

1. Over the properly installed and prepared substrate surface, PVC full-width rolls are to be installed 
perpendicular to the steel deck flutes, wood plank or wood or concrete panels. Sarnafasteners and 
Sarnadiscs are installed along the edge of the membrane on the fastening line at a spacing determined 
by Sarnafil and the Owner’s Representative/Designer.  Sarnadisc and Sarnadisc-XPN are held-back 1 
inch, from the outer edge of the membrane. The adjacent full-roll is positioned to overlap the fastened 
edge of the first full-roll by 5-1/2 inches for Sarnadisc and Sarnadisc-XPN, in accordance with the 
overlap lines marked on it’s edge.  The 5-1/2 inch overlap will allow the top membrane to extend 2-1/2 
inches  past the Sarnadisc and Sarnadisc-XPN for heat-welding.  Fasteners shall clamp the PVC 
membrane tightly to the substrate. See Detail Drawings. 
 

2. Hot-air weld overlaps according to Sarnafil’s requirements. Seam test cuts shall be taken at least 2 
times per day. 
 
 
3.07 HOT-AIR WELDING OF SEAM OVERLAPS 
 

A. General 

Page 116 of 133



 
1. All seams shall be hot-air welded.  Seam overlaps should be 5-1/2 inches wide for Sarnadisc and 

Sarnadisc-XPN, 7 inches wide for Sarnadisc-MAXLoad and 3 inches for Rhino Bond systems when 
automatic machine-welding and 4 inches wide when hand-welding, except for certain details. 
 

2. Welding equipment shall be provided by or approved by the membrane manufacturer.  All mechanics 
intending to use the equipment shall have successfully completed a training course provided by the 
membrane manufacturer’s Technical Representative prior to welding. 
 

3. All membrane to be welded shall be clean and dry. 
 

B. Hand-Welding 
 
1. Hand-welded seams shall be completed in two stages.  Hot-air welding equipment shall be allowed to warm up for 

at least one minute prior to welding. 
2. The back edge of the seam shall be welded with a narrow but continuous weld to prevent loss of hot air during the 

final welding. 
3. The nozzle shall be inserted into the seam at a 45 degree angle to the edge of the membrane.  Once the proper 

welding temperature has been reached and the membrane begins to "flow," the hand roller is positioned 
perpendicular to the nozzle and rolled lightly.  For straight seams, the 1-1/2 inch wide nozzle is recommended for 
use.  For corners and compound connections, the 3/4 inch wide nozzle shall be used. 
 

C. Machine Welding 
 

1. Machine welded seams are achieved by the use of the membrane manufacturer’s automatic welding 
equipment.  When using this equipment, Manufacturer's instructions shall be followed and local codes 
for electric supply, grounding and over current protection observed.  Dedicated circuit house power or 
a dedicated portable generator is recommended.  No other equipment shall be operated 
simultaneously off the generator. 
 

2. Metal tracks may be used over the deck membrane and under the machine welder to minimize or 
eliminate wrinkles. 

 

D. Quality Control of Welded Seams 
 

1. The Applicator shall check all welded seams for continuity using a rounded screwdriver.  Visible 
evidence that welding is proceeding correctly is smoke during the welding operation, shiny membrane 
surfaces, and an uninterrupted flow of dark grey material from the underside of the top membrane.  
On-site evaluation of welded seams shall be made daily by the Applicator at locations as directed by 
the Owner's Representative or the membrane manufacturer’s representative.  One inch wide cross-
section samples of welded seams shall be taken at least two times a day.  Correct welds display failure 
from shearing of the membrane prior to separation of the weld.  Each test cut shall be patched by the 
Applicator at no extra cost to the Owner. 
 
3.08 MEMBRANE FLASHINGS 
 
All flashings shall be installed concurrently with the roof membrane as the job progresses.  No 
temporary flashings shall be allowed without the prior written approval of the Owner's 

Page 117 of 133



Representative and the membrane manufacturer.  If any water is allowed to enter under the newly 
completed roofing, the affected area shall be removed and replaced at the Applicator's expense.  
Flashing shall be adhered to compatible, dry, smooth, and solvent-resistant surfaces.  Use caution to 
ensure adhesive fumes are not drawn into the building. 
 

A. VOC Compliant Flashing Adhesive 
 

1. Over the properly installed and prepared flashing substrate, the flashing adhesive shall be applied 
according to instructions found on the Product Data Sheet.  The flashing adhesive shall be applied in 
smooth, even coats with no gaps, globs or similar inconsistencies.  Only an area which can be 
completely covered in the same day's operations shall be flashed.  The bonded sheet shall be pressed 
firmly in place with a hand roller. 
 

2. No adhesive shall be applied in seam areas that are to be welded.  All panels of membrane shall be 
applied in the same manner, overlapping the edges of the panels as required by welding techniques. 
 

B. Install peel stop according to the Detail Drawings with approved fasteners into the structural deck at 
the base of parapets, walls and curbs.  Peel stop is required by the membrane manufacturer at the 
base of all tapered edge strips and at transitions, peaks, and valleys according to the Manufacturer's 
details. 
 

C. The Manufacturer's requirements and recommendations and the specifications shall be followed.  All 
material submittals shall have been accepted by the membrane manufacturer prior to installation. 
  

D. All flashings shall extend a minimum of 8 inches above roofing level unless otherwise accepted in 
writing by the Owner's Representative and the membrane manufacturer’s Technical Department. 
 

E. All flashing membranes shall be consistently adhered to substrates.  All interior and exterior corners 
and miters shall be cut and hot-air welded into place. No bitumen shall be in contact with the PVC 
membrane. 
 

F. All flashing membranes shall be mechanically fastened along the counter-flashed top edge with Peel 
stop at 12 inches on center. 
  

G. Membrane flashings shall be terminated according to the membrane manufacturer’s recommended 
details.   
 

H. All adhered flashings that exceed 45 inches in height shall receive additional securement.  Consult 
Sika Corporation Technical Department for securement methods.   
 

3.09 METAL FLASHINGS 
 

A. Metal details, fabrication practices and installation methods shall conform to the applicable 
requirements of the following: 
 

1. Factory Mutual Loss Prevention Data Sheet 1-49 (latest issue). 
2. Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors National Association, Inc. (SMACNA) - latest issue. 

 

Page 118 of 133



B. Metal, other than that provided by the membrane manufacturer, is not covered under the 
Manufacturer’s warranty. 
 

C. Complete all metal work in conjunction with roofing and flashings so that a watertight condition 
exists daily. 
 

D. Metal shall be installed to provide adequate resistance to bending to allow for normal thermal 
expansion and contraction. 
 

E. Metal joints shall be watertight. 
 

F. Metal flashings shall be securely fastened into solid wood blocking.  Fasteners shall penetrate the 
wood nailer a minimum of 1 inch. 
 

G. Airtight and continuous metal hook strips are required behind metal fascias.  Hook strips are to be 
fastened 12 inches on center into the wood nailer or masonry wall. 
 

H. Counter flashings shall overlap base flashings at least 4 inches. 
 

I. Hook strips shall extend past wood nailers over wall surfaces by 1-1/2 inch minimum and shall be 
securely sealed from air entry. 
 

3.10 CLAD METAL FLASHINGS 
 

A. Sarnaclad metal flashings shall be formed and installed per the Detail Drawings: 
1. All metal flashings shall be fastened into solid wood nailers with two rows of post galvanized flat 

head annular ring nails, 4 inches on center staggered.  Fasteners shall penetrate the nailer a 
minimum of 1 inch. 

2. Metal shall be installed to provide adequate resistance to bending and allow for normal thermal 
expansion and contraction. 
 

B. Adjacent sheets of Sarnaclad shall be spaced 1/4 inch apart.  The joint shall be covered with 2 inch 
wide aluminum tape. A 4 inch minimum wide strip of Sarnafil flashing membrane shall be hot-air 
welded over the joint.  Exercise caution at perimeter of roof. 
 
 

3.11 WALKWAY INSTALLATION 
 

A. PVC Walk tread 
 
Roofing membrane to receive PVC walk tread shall be clean and dry.  Place chalk lines on deck sheet 
to indicate location of walk tread.  Apply a continuous coat of VOC Compliant flashing adhesive to the 
deck sheet and the back of walk tread in accordance with the membrane manufacturer’s technical 
requirements and press walk tread into place with a water-filled, foam-covered lawn roller.  Clean 
the deck membrane in areas to be welded.  Hot-air weld the entire perimeter of the walk tread to the 
PVC deck sheet.  Check all welds with a rounded screwdriver.  Re-weld any inconsistencies.  
Important: Check all existing deck membrane seams that are to be covered by walk tread with 
rounded screwdriver and reweld any inconsistencies before walk tread installation. 

Page 119 of 133



 
3.12 TEMPORARY CUT-OFF 

 
All flashings shall be installed concurrently with the roof membrane in order to maintain a watertight 
condition as the work progresses.  All temporary waterstops shall be constructed to provide a 100% 
watertight seal.  The new membrane shall be carried into the waterstop. The waterstop shall be 
sealed to the deck and/or substrate so that water will not be allowed to travel under the new or 
existing roofing.  The edge of the membrane shall be sealed in a continuous heavy application of 
sealant as described in Section 2.08.  When work resumes, the contaminated membrane shall be cut 
out. All sealant, contaminated membrane, fillers, etc. shall be removed from the work area and 
properly disposed of off site. None of these materials shall be used in the new work. 
 
If inclement weather occurs while a temporary waterstop is in place, the Applicator shall provide the 
labor necessary to monitor the situation to maintain a watertight condition. 
 
If any water is allowed to enter under the newly-completed roofing, the affected area shall be 
removed and replaced at the Applicator's expense. 
 

3.13 COMPLETION 
 
Prior to demobilization from the site, the work shall be reviewed per 1.02 Item B above. All defects 
noted and non-compliances with the Specifications or the recommendations of the Manufacturer 
shall be itemized in a punch list.  These items must be corrected immediately by the Applicator to the 
satisfaction of the Inspector and membrane manufacturer prior to demobilization. 
 
All Warranties referenced in this Specification shall have been submitted and have been accepted at 
time of contract award. 
 
 

 

Page 120 of 133



138 S. Brandon St. Fallbrook, CA 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 121 of 133



 

22 

 

 

 

617 Alvarado St. Fallbrook, CA 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 122 of 133



 

23 

 

 

Fallbrook Regional Health  – Bid Form 

                                                                                                        
Each bidder offering a proposal must be familiar with all requirements necessary to complete the repair 
outlined and agrees to utilize manufacture approved installers where applicable. 

The undersigned bidder hereby offers, in the amount stated below, to furnish all labor, materials, tools, 
equipment, apparatus, facilities and communication for the project detailed herein. 

 
The Base Bid amount is to be stated in figures only and is the total amount bid for the entire contract work 
including all applicable taxes. Permits shall be obtained by contractor; client will reimburse contractor for 
actual permit costs. 

The Bidder shall hold all pricing for 90 calendar days after bid due date. The Client reserve the right to adjust 
by change order the actual quantity of each unit item utilizing the quoted unit prices. The HOA would like 
your proposal for their wood replacement and paint project as follows: 

 
                                       Roof Replacement: 
 

                                       138 S. Brandon Road:                                                                                        $                     Lump Sum 

                                       617 Alvarado Street:                                                                                         $                     Lump Sum 

                                        

                                      Project Total:                                                                                                      $                     Lump Sum 

 

Proposed Start Date: Within X days of receipt of executed contract.  

Proposed Duration:                                weeks.  

 

Bidder Name:   Bidder Signature:    

Company Name:  Date:  _________________

 

Page 123 of 133



Page 124 of 133



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fallbrook Regional Health  

Request for Proposal 

June ___, 2019 

Page 125 of 133



2 

 

 

 

 

Dear Contractor: 
 

The Fallbrook Regional Health Department would like to invite you to provide a competitive proposal for 
their roofing project. Please provide a proposal package based on the provided documents in this Request 
for Proposal. Enclosed you will find the bid instructions and bidding documents. 

 
Fallbrook Regional Health:  
1636 E. Mission Rd, Fallbrook 

 
Wendy Lyon will be your main point of contact during the bidding process. Wendy can be reached via 
email or phone at bookeeper@fallbrookhealth.org or 760.390.9380. Please notify Wendy with your 
intention to bid by XX/XX/19. 

 
Our bid schedule is as follows: 

 

1. Request for proposal issued: XX/XX /19 

2. Proposal due: XX/XX/19 

 
Thank You, 

 
Wendy Lyon, Fallbrook Regional Health Department

Page 126 of 133

mailto:bookeeper@fallbrookhealth.org


3 

 

 

 

Bid Instructions 
1. Contractor Representations 
2. Interpretation or Correction of Bidding Documents 
3. Bid Preparation 
4. Additional Project Requirements 
5. Consideration of Bids 
6. Bid Form 

 
 

1. Contractor Representations 

The Contractor by making a bid represents that: 

The Contractor has read and understands the Bidding Documents to the extent that such 
documentation relates to the Work for which the Bid is submitted, and for other portions of 
the Project, if any, being bid concurrently or presently under construction. 

The Bid is made in compliance with the Bidding Documents. 

The Contractor has visited the site, become familiar with local conditions under which the 
Work is to be performed and has correlated the Contractor's personal observations with the 
requirements of the Bidding Documents. 

The Bid is based upon the materials, equipment and systems required by the Bidding 
Documents without exception. Alternates to the products specified herein may be considered, 
please provide like in kind manufactures back-up with any alternate bids submitted. 

 

  Warranty: 
  Contractor to provide proposed warranty 

2. Interpretation or Correction of Bidding Documents 
 

Contractors requiring clarification or interpretation of the Bidding Documents shall make a 
written request which shall reach the Contract Administrator, Wendy Lyon by XX/XX/19. 

Interpretations, corrections, and changes of the Bidding Documents made by any other 
manner will not be binding, and Contractors shall not rely upon them. 

Quantities provided in the Bidding Documents where applicable are intended for bid 
evaluation purposes only. 

 
3. Bid Preparation 

 

Bids shall be completed and submitted on the forms included with the Bidding Documents. 
Along with the bid form, please provide the following documents: 

- References 
o List, at least, three projects you have completed within the past three 

years that are similar to this project. 

Page 127 of 133



 

4 

 

 

- Preliminary Schedule and Phasing Plan 
- Insurance 

o Provide insurance coverage 
- Safety Program 

o Provide your safety program; how you will ensure the safety of both your 
crew and residents. 

- Quality Control Program 
o Provide your Quality Control processes and procedures 

- Communication Program 
o Provide your communication program; how you will communicate with 

Owners during the re-roof process.  
 

4. Additional Project Requirements 

- All work shall be done during the hours XXX and XXX on XXX days of the week. 

- Contractor shall keep all work areas clean, safe and clearly marked with caution tape and 

cones to insure the safety of the residents and employees. 

- Contractor shall emphasize good housekeeping practices at all times exercising extreme 

caution to protect all personnel and facility. 

- Materials, storage containers, etc. shall be placed in such location(s) on the property as 

designated by Owner and locked at all times. Please submit a staging plan for each 

building for consideration and/or approval. 

- Contractor shall remove and dispose of all debris from property as a result of all work 

performed, prior to leaving the job site at the end of each day. 
 

- Contractor shall provide insurance, Contractor licenses and contact information for any 

Sub-Contractors or Company employees used on this project prior to starting work. 

- All workers on site are required to have Contractor company uniform and identification 

cards or tags at all times. 

- Contractor required to provide Owner an updated weekly schedule at a time mutually 

agreed upon in writing. 

- Any worker on site is required to utilize contractor supplied restroom facilities on site and 

refrain from using any toilet facilities on premises unless otherwise agreed upon in writing 

with Owner. 
 

- Protection of the premises: Contractor shall be required to properly protect the areas of the 
Premises where the work is being performed. For the purposes for this requirement, 
“properly protect” shall include, without limitation, tarping in a watertight condition and 
taking any reasonable measures necessary to protect the interiors of the building upon which 
the work shall be performed or areas of the premises adjacent to where the work shall be 
performed. This responsibility shall include, but not be limited, to requiring that Contractor to 
take commercially reasonable measures to ensure that the common area and/or the interior 

Page 128 of 133



 

5 

 

 

of the premises including the units shall not be damaged by any form of water intrusion 
occurring in connection with the work.  If the contractor does not properly protect the work 
areas where the work is being performed, the Contractor shall be fully responsible and liable 
for any interior damage to any common areas and to any unit located within the premises 
resulting directly or indirectly from the performance of the work. Such repairs and/or 
replacements shall be without cost to property owner, and shall be made as soon as possible, 
but in no event (7) days after said request. Notwithstanding and foregoing, all emergency 
repairs shall commence within twenty-four (24) hours after demand for such repairs 

- Attach your firms labor and materials rate sheet for reference on all Change Orders. Rate 

sheet shall include (at a minimum) unit price as outlined on bid form. 

Safety: 

- Contractor shall have on-site at all times a foreman possessing knowledge of OSHA 

policies and procedures and have a completed Job Safety plan. 

- Contractor agrees to the following: 
o First safety violation will result in an email warning 
o Second safety violation will result in a fine equal to 1.5% of the contract 

value 

o Third safety violation will result in work stoppage – work stoppage due to safety 

violations may result in contract cancelation. 

5. Consideration of Bids 

Selection will be an award based on best value to the Client that includes several criteria and not 
just lowest price. The criteria include consideration for the contractor’s: 

1. Past performance 
2. Company Qualifications 
3. Management procedures 
4. Price 

 
The Owner shall have the right to reject any or all Bids and to negotiate either contract terms and 
conditions, or price with the selected Contractor. A Bid which is in any way incomplete or irregular 
is subject to rejection. 
 

 

6. Work 
 

The work to be done on this project includes furnishing all materials, labor, tools, equipment, 
scaffolding, lifts and all other necessary equipment, supplies, and services to perform a 
complete and thorough job. Each item or area in these specifications is described by the most 
commonly used name, and contractor shall inform himself of these areas that are being repaired. 
All equipment on the roof is to remain in place and operable during the installation of the new 
roof or roof repair. Should the equipment need to be relocated or disconnected to effectively 
replace the roof please provide your proposed cost, means and method in a separate document 
and attach to this bid form. Contractor shall be responsible for requesting prompt clarification 
when instructions are lacking or unclear.  

Page 129 of 133



 

6 

 

 

All permits shall be the responsibility of bidder. Owner will reimburse bidder for permit costs. 

 
 

  SCOPE OF WORK: 1636 E. Mission Road, Fallbrook 
 

Option A:  
Metal Roof Replacement 

1.    Remove existing metal roofing and dispose 
2.    Check condition of wood members and replace all rotten and termite damaged wood. 
3.    If decking plywood is existing install ½” plywood, installed with proper nailing pattern to code. 
4.    Install Polyglass MTS underlayment double layer on top of plywood.  This underlayment installed in two 

layers carries a 30 Year No Dollar Limit Manufacturer’s warranty. Contractor to confirm with Manufacture  
5.    Install new Kynar coated corrugated “PBR” metal panels.  
6.    Install mechanical fasteners with neoprene washers on the high rib of corrugated sheeting. Fasteners are 

not to be installed on the low rib of panels to avoid leaks. 
7.    Flash around all mechanical equipment and seal seams with polyurethane sealant. 
 

  
 

Option B:  
Coating on the metal roof 

1.    Clean roof and remove any areas with rust with wire brush or cut rotten areas out. 
2.    Replace rotten metal areas or use webbing and seal holes with appropriate filler. 
3.    Etch or prime metal roof 
4.    Spray apply, Polybrite 90 by polyglass, silicone roof coating to 1.5 gallons per square and let cure 
5.    Spray apply second coat at a rate of 1 gal per square and let cure. 
 

Page 130 of 133



 

7 

 

 

 
 

Page 131 of 133



 

8 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 132 of 133



 

9 

 

 

Fallbrook Regional Health  – Bid Form 

                                                                                                        
Each bidder offering a proposal must be familiar with all requirements necessary to complete the repair 
outlined and agrees to utilize manufacture approved installers where applicable. 

The undersigned bidder hereby offers, in the amount stated below, to furnish all labor, materials, tools, 
equipment, apparatus, facilities and communication for the project detailed herein. 

 
The Base Bid amount is to be stated in figures only and is the total amount bid for the entire contract work 
including all applicable taxes. Permits shall be obtained by contractor; client will reimburse contractor for 
actual permit costs. 

The Bidder shall hold all pricing for 90 calendar days after bid due date. The Client reserve the right to adjust 
by change order the actual quantity of each unit item utilizing the quoted unit prices. The HOA would like 
your proposal for their wood replacement and paint project as follows: 

 
                                       Roof Replacement: 
 

                                       1636 E Mission Road Option A:                                                                  $         _____            Lump Sum 

                                       1636 E Mission Road Option B:                                                                  $     _____                Lump Sum 

 

Proposed Start Date: Within X days of receipt of executed contract.  

Proposed Duration:                                weeks.  

 

Bidder Name:   Bidder Signature:    

Company Name:  Date:  _________________

 

Page 133 of 133




